Windsor BIA Advisory Committee

Meeting held April 27, 2021

A meeting of the Windsor BIA Advisory Committee is held this day commencing at 3:00 o'clock p.m. via Zoom video conference, there being present the following members:

Councillor Chris Holt, Chair
Councillor Rino Bortolin
Councillor Ed Sleiman
Debbie Croucher, Downtown Windsor BIA
Mary Ann Cuderman, Sandwich BIA
Tom Coke, Sandwich BIA
Brandi Myles, Erie Street BIA
Mike Osborne, Ottawa Street BIA
Shane Potvin, Ford City BIA
Filip Rocca, Erie Street BIA
Howard Spinner, Walkerville BIA
Terry Yaldo, Pillette Village BIA

Also present is the following resource personnel:

Karen Kadour, Committee Coordinator

1. Call to Order

The Chair calls the meeting to order at 3:00 o'clock p.m. and the Committee considers the Agenda being Schedule A attached hereto, matters which are dealt with as follows:

2 Declaration of Conflict

None disclosed.

3. Adoption of the Minutes

Moved by Councillor Sleiman, seconded by M.A. Cuderman,
That the minutes of the Windsor BIA Advisory Committee of its meeting held
January 28, 2021 **BE ADOPTED** as presented.
Carried.

4. Presentation – Bicycle/E-scooter Share System

Chris Schafer, Vice President, Government Affairs, Bird Canada provides a PowerPoint presentation entitled "Windsor Bicycle/E-scooter Sharing Program – Pilot Program", *attached* as Appendix "A". The highlights of the Presentation are as follows:

- Bird Canada Inc. is a first KM / last KM,micro-mobility sharing company dedicated to bringing affordable, environmentally friendly transportation solutions to Canadian municipalities. Some municipalities include Calgary, Edmonton, Ottawa, Montreal and Waterloo.
- E-scooter Rider Education Providing residents an opportunity to test ride an escooter at no cost
- Educating residents on safe and responsible riding including local rules like no sidewalk riding
- Free helmets given away to local residents
- Rider Education: Safe Streets Patrol Uniformed Bird Canada staff physically patrols on foot key areas of the City identified in collaboration with City staff
- E-scooter Geofencing:
- **Slow Down Zones:** Most Canadian cities have set scooters to a maximum of 20 km/h and Ottawa implemented slow down zones for highly pedestrianized areas of the City so that scooters travel slower in these zones (8 km/h 15 km/h in Ottawa).
- **No Ride Zones**: There are no rides zones where upon entering the zone the scooter slows down gradually and stops safely to discourage riding.
- **No Park Zones:** There are no park zones where upon entering the zone, the scooter is unable to be parked/trip ended.
- The beginner mode on the e-scooter automatically softens a Bird scooter's acceleration, allowing riders to slowly work their way up to full speed.
- Fifty percent e-scooters end up in a BIA zone.
- Individuals under 18 years of age must wear a helmet, however all riders are encouraged to wear helmets.

The Chair thanks Chris Schafer for the presentation. A question and answer period follows.

In response to a question asked by M.A. Cuderman regarding who is funding this program, C. Schafer responds that Bird Canada funds their operations and adds that people pay for the trips.

M.A Cuderman refers to the Gordie Howe Bridge and adds that it will be bicycle friendly. She asks if there will be a partnership to allow the bicycle/e-scooters to travel on the bridge.

C. Schafer responds that currently bicycles are not allowed on the bridge, but this partnership would be ideal if there were some connectivity.

- D. Croucher asks what the anticipated timeline for this initiative is.
- C. Schafer responds they are looking to launch in early May 2021. The service will run until October 2021.

In response to a question asked by D. Croucher regarding who retains the information provided by the riders and are there any privacy issues, C. Schafer responds that each city has contractual agreements to follow the dictates of the privacy law. He notes that they only collect information that is required for the service.

- D. Croucher asks for the cost to utilize the e-scooters/bikes.
- C. Schafer responds the cost is \$1.15 to unlock the vehicle plus thirty-five cents a minute. He adds that a short trip costs in the range of \$3.00 to \$5.00.
- D. Croucher notes that she would like to minimize the number of no ride zones in the DWBIA.

Councillor Bortolin refers to the use of bikes for the residents as a means of transportation and adds that there has to be a reliability factor, i.e. to know that there will be a bike available to take to work or to an appointment. In looking at the numbers, there will be one hundred bikes and adds that we will not have bicycles for some time due to international shortage of bikes. He asks Mr. Schafer to comment on consistency, as there is not a set station for the bikes. He asks if there a plan to increase the number of bikes.

C. Schafer concurs that reliability is everything. Bird Canada has "nests" which are like a docking station except it is virtual. They create within the confines of local rules, nests based on data. Within a virtual nest, are 3-4 scooters or bikes together and those nests would be strategically placed in the city, but over time, the data will tell them particular things, i.e. that particular nest is a bad nest due to low demand. That nest will be switched to create that level of reliability that has been flagged as key. In terms of the bikes, they will arrive in the summer.

Councillor Bortolin asks if there will be an opportunity to add more bikes later.

- C. Schafer responds that there is a mechanism in the rules locally to increase the fleet.
- F. Rocca remarks that he rode Bird in Detroit and San Diego and adds that this is a great initiative for the City.
 - B. Myles states they are looking forward to getting it started.
 - M. Osborne asks C. Schafer to comment on the docking of the bikes.

- C. Schafer responds that under that docking model, you have to go to a docking station, unlock it, pull the vehicle out, return it to a station and lock it back in. As this model is so expensive, there are only a limited number of those stations. Let us assume there is a docking station nearby and there is a vehicle in the docking station. The question is will there be a docking station at the end of the trip and will it be full.
- C. Schafer comments on bikes in a free-floating or dockless model, which removes the docking station and provides the reliability factor. With this model, the volume of trips will increase because the scooters or bikes are near to where they need to be more times than it is with other models.
 - H. Spinner asks what the average age of the user is.
- C. Schafer responds that the Ontario Government introduced a five year pilot under the *Highway Traffic Act* to allow for the age of 16 + and older to ride the scooters.
 - H. Spinner asks who is liable if someone is injured while using a scooter/e-bike.
- C. Schafer indicates that people will sue all parties. In Ottawa, city staff reported that their municipal insurance was not capped during the e-scooter pilot in 2020. If Bird Canada is negligent in terms of the provision of the scooter or the manner in which the scooter was serviced, under their contractual arrangements with the city are ordered to hold liability insurance as coverage for that purpose. If a rider is negligent, that becomes a different question.

In response to a question asked by H. Spinner regarding if they provide helmets, C. Schafer advises that riders are expected to bring their own helmets. They do provide helmets at no cost at events that they host. He adds that riders 18 years of age or older are not required to wear a helmet, but they are encouraged to do so.

H. Spinner asks if the scooters and e-bikes can be used in all of the BIA's.

The Chair responds the scooters/e-bikes can be used in all of the BIA's with the exception of the Pillette Village and the Riverside BIA as they are not included in the catchment area.

- S. Potvin asks for confirmation that all of Drouillard Road is included in the catchment area including both sides of the sidewalks.
- C. Schafer indicates that their map was drawn based on the requirements by the city in the RFP.
- S. Potvin states he is excited that scooters can assist people in travelling through the Ford City BIA and then get people from Erie Street, Ottawa Street, Walkerville and back to Ford City. He asks if there will advertising for events through the Apps to give

away helmets as Ford City has lower income neighbourhoods in general. He asks C. Schafer what sorts of things they will do in the future at a BIA or community level.

C. Schafer responds that they have low-income special fare options. They have a feature to be rolled out where they highlight local businesses in the App with routing to those businesses via scooter. If a BIA is hosting a festival or event, they would be happy to be present, have a booth, and provide a course so people can test ride the scooters.

In response to a question asked by Councillor Sleiman regarding the weight of an e-bike, C. Schafer responds the e-bikes weigh 34 kilograms.

- C. Sleiman asks if there is a requirement for a licence. C. Schafer responds that a licence is not required to ride an e-bike or scooter
 - C. Sleiman asks which is friendlier for seniors an e-bike or a scooter.
- C. Schafer responds that the e-bike is friendlier because unlike a regular bike, which one has to power to make it go forward, an e-bike is e-assist. When you peddle an e-assist bike, the motor kicks in and helps one to propel forward with less exertion.
- T. Yaldo, expresses concern that the Pilllette BIA was not included in the catchment area and he hopes that the Pillette BIA and Riverside BIA will be included in the future.

The Chair remarks that in looking at the map, that the entire waterfront is a "slow zone" and he asks what the regulated speed is.

C. Schafer responds that the waterfront is a slow zone and given the volume of pedestrians, cyclists and people being down at the waterfront, it is definitely a slow-down zone to facilitate a safe experience for everyone. Generally across Canada, slow down zones are 15 km/hour.

The Chair asks hypothetically, if there was a huge event on Ottawa Street and people jump on scooters and descend on Ottawa Street, there would be no scooters available in the city at 2:00 on a Saturday. He asks if redistribution is handled throughout the day or only at night and how do they ensure that there are enough scooters to allow everybody access to all of the BIA's.

C. Schafer responds that they work directly with the organizers of events to ensure they have extra staff deployed to that area to manage the parking of those scooters, key certain geofences would be drawn that organizers want to keep scooters out of certain areas of the festival. It is never good business practice to have all of the scooters in one place, so they have staff on the ground deploying and rebalancing scooters throughout the day, which is how they ensure reliability.

The Chair asks what the metrics are to determine if the pilot program is a success, will be permanent, and will expand.

C. Schafer responds that the metrics are aligned between the City and Operator. The City staff will report back at the end of the pilot to City Council and will outline the issues, challenges and success of the program along with recommendations. In terms of the Operator's metrics, they look at the number of trips per vehicle per day, the higher the better.

The Chair asks how the opportunities for the BIA's can be maximized.

C. Schafer responds that the city staff will have a direct line with the local operations team in Windsor. He suggests that he be used as a conduit to Bird Canada and city staff will have a direct line to the local operations team.

5. Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting will be held at the call of the Chair.

6. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned at 4:54 o'clock p.m.

CHAII
COMMITTEE COORDINATOR